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Five-Year Summary Financial Information

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Net Sales $19,723,254  $14,447,801  $12,295688 $12,504,049  $18,299,766
I
Income (Loss) from Operations $ 1,875,330 $ 243,049 $(|1,106,838) $(1,213,405) § 1,681,000
Net Income (Loss) After Tax $ 1,163,452 $ 169,590 $_ ;\(658.248) $ (665,402) $ 1,070,537
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share: [
Net Income (Loss)—Basic $0.64 $0.10 $(0.37) $(0.36) $0.54
Net Income {Loss)—Diluted $0.63 $0.10 : $(0.37) $(0.36) $0.53
Current Assets $11,182,130 $ 9,824,373 3 :9,449,954 $10,304,800 $12,377,423
Total Assets $13,011,998 $11,577,339 $10,656,254 $11,808,473 $14,236,525
Current Liabilities $ 1,521,277 . $ 1,666,144 $: 939,233 $ 1,415,793 $ 1,701,427
" Total Liabilities $ 2,287,047 § 2,028,663 ;1,432,60.7 $ 1926578 § 2,377,077
Total Equity $10,724,951 $ 9,548,676 $ 9,223,647 $ 9,881,895 $11,859,448
Total Liabi].ities & Eq_uity $13,011,998 "$11,577,339 $10,656,254 $11,808,473 $14,236,525
Current Ratio 7.35 3.90 9.55 7.28 7.27
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Dear Fellow Shareholders:

Kreisler made great progress this year and our financial results reflect our efforts, We achieved record sales of $19,700,000
and our profitability improved significantly as net income of $1,163,000 reached levels not seen in over five years. Cur
operating income of $1,875,000 was almost eight times greater than 2005. Our order backlog stands at $20,800,000.

What our numbers don’t show is what has been happening inside the business to make such outstanding progress. More
than ever before, we have differentiated our Company from other aerospace suppliers. We've differentiated ourselves by
expanding capacity faster than our competitors and giving the customer confidence that we will deliver. We've differen-
tiated ourselves by providing competitive prices due to our improved operating efficiency, We've differentiated ourselves
by being the first in our peer group to establish an independently certified machine shop in Poland. It’s a testament to
the management team and our co-workers in New Jersey and Poland that such a relatively small group (160 employees

and growing) has successfully implemented so much.

We have also better defined the core competencies that have given us a competitive advantage. These include lower cost
machining, more efficient manufacturing and a proprietary purchasing system. What we must do better in the future is

capitalize on our core competencies and intellectual capital to increase the value of the Company.

We have also increased the visibility of Kreisler Industrial Corporation and Kreisler Polska to potential new customers by
participating in the 2006 Farnborough Air Show and the Kielce Defense and Aerospace Exhibition in Poland. We will con-
tinue to increase our sales and marketing efforts in the coming year, including participation at the Paris Air Show. We will
also work to diversify our customer base at Kreisler Industrial and Kreisler Polska without jeopardizing our core business

and the customers who have brought us success this year and in the past.

As the sales and marketing effort increases, the business must expand capacity and prepare to invest in new opportuni-
ties as they develop. In our business, most people think expanding capacity is solely about purchasing equipment. Indeed,
we expect gb invest $1,000,000 in equipment at Kreisler Polska during 2007 towards increasing our own capacity. But, we

must also focus on growing the management infrastructure, which is our true constraint to growth.

We know who we are as a Company and where we want to go, thanks to the support of our employees, shareholders

and directors.

FgH=

Michael D. Stern Edward A. Stern
Co-President & Chief Executive Officer Co-President & Chief Financial Officer
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PART 1

ITEM1., ' DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation (the “Company”) is a Delaware business corporation which was
incorporated on December 13, 1968. The Company succeeded a New Jersey busmess corporation, which was
incorporated in New Jersey in 1940, and which succeeded a New York corporation which was incorporated in
1930. The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Kreisler Industrial Corporation (“Kreisler Industrial™),
which was incorporated in New Jersey on July 3, 1956, and Kreisler Polska Sp. z 0.0 (“Kreisler Polska™), which
was incorporated in Krakow, Poland in March 2005, manufacture precision metal components and assemblies -
for use in military and commercial aircraft engines and industrial gas turbines. Kreisler Industrial’s products
primarily include tube and manifold assemblies of multiple sizes and configurations and are typically
manufactured in accordance with customer designs and specifications. Kreisler Polska pnmanly provides
machined components to Kreisler Industrial.

Products

The Company’s products include tube assemblies of multiple sizes and configurations as well as
machined components. Assemblies are made of various materials, including titanium, nickel and stainless steel.
These high quality engineered manifold assemblies transfer fuel for combustion, oil for lubrlcatlou and
hydraulic fluid to activate thrust reversers.

Sales of products are made through an in-house sales staff. All products are manufactured to the
designs and specifications of the particular customer. Orders are received through competitive proposals, which
are made in response to requests for bids from contractors who supply engines to various branches of the United
States Department of Defense or to commercial businesses. -

Customers

Three commercial customers and the United States Government accounted for approximately 83% of
the consolidated net sales of the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The concentration of sales
with a small group of customers places the Company in an adverse position should any of these customers
reduce their volume of sales orders with the Company. Please refer to Note H in the Notes to the Consohdated
Financial Statements for additional information.

Competition

The markets in which the Company operates are highly competitive. The Company’s competitors
include several enterprises which are substantially larger than the Company and possess greater financial,
production and marketing resources, and numerous smaller privately-held companies. In addition, some of the
Company’s customers and potential customers maintain manufacturing capabilities comparable to those of the
Company. The principal bases of competition are price, quality, delivery and service. In today’s market,
flexibility, quality, pricing and speed of delivery are required elements. The Company believes that it is
competitive with respect to the above elements.

b

Sdurces of Supply

The Company does not have any long-term or fixed purchase agreements with its suppliers. Materials
used in the Company’s products are purchased, as required, from various suppliers. At times, the Company’s
customers require raw materials or components to be purchased from designated suppliers. The Company also
uses a variety. of raw materials in the manufacture of its products. During fiscal 2006, increased delivery lead-
times for some raw materials, particularly titanium and nickel-based alloys, were experienced along with
significant price increases in the cost of those alloys. Smaller cost increases were also experienced in stainless
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steel alloys used by the Company. Future shortages or price fluctuations in raw materials could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s operations.

Product_iori

Fabricated precision metal components and assemblies are manufactured and assembled by the
Company to customer drawmgs and specifications. To meet the exacting requirements of its customers, the
Company exercises stnct quality and process controls and maintains third-party quality system accreditations
including ISO 9001 and AS9100 as well as NADCAP (National Aerospace Defense Contractors Accreditation
Progra.m) special process accreditations.

_Employees

At June 30, 2006 the Company employed approximately 155 persons, of whom 4 are part-time
employees. Approx1mately 72 are subject to a collective bargaining agreement with the United Service
Employees Union which terminates on December 4, 2006. Negotiations for a new collective bargammg '
agreement are expected to commence in October 2006. Management believes that labor relations in the
Company have generally been satisfactory.

Government Regulaﬁons

The Company i is subject to various Federal and State regulatrons concerning the conduct of its business
including regulations u1'1der the Occupational Health and Safety Act, various acts dealing with the environment
as well as export licenses for the manufacturer of military-related components in Poland.

A material portion of the business of the Company is subject to provisions which permit the termination
of contracts at the elecnon of the U.S Government or its prime contractors. Contracts with the U.S. Government
and with suppliers to the U.S. Government generally provide for termination at any time for the convenience of
the U.S. Government a'nd its prime contractors, and upon such termination a contractor is entitled to receive
payment for the work performed plus a pro rata portion of the profit it would have earned before the termination.

]

Compliance with Environmental Laws

The Company maintains a sewer use perrmt issued by the Passaic Valley Sewerage Commissioners
(“PVSC”) authorizing | the Company to discharge industrial effluent from its Kreisler Industrial manufacturing
facility located at 180 Yan Riper Avenue, Elmwood Park, New Jersey into the PVSC Waste Treatment facility.
Kreisler Industrial followed the requirements of Federal Regulation 40 CFR 413 and Section 313.1 of the PVSC
Rules and RegulatronsI In July 2005, the Company was notified by the PVSC that the Company was in
violation of the daily maxrmum limit for nickel and total metals and, as a result, had incurred a serious violation.
These violations occurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The Company was also notified that it
was in significant non- 'comphance and subject to enforcement action. The Company retained the services of an
environmental remediation consultant and immediately removed the suspected cause of these violations from its
industrial effluent drscharge The Company also retained legal counsel. The Company has implemented
processes to eliminate ‘the re-occurrence of this type of violation. The Company approved and executed a
Settlement Agreementrwuh the PVSC in January 2006. Upon receipt of a fully executed Settlement Agreement
from the PVSC in February 2006, the Company paid a settlement amount of $21,500. Based on the previously
estimated range of penaltles the Company accrued a charge against earnings of $37,500 for the year ended June
30, 2005. This amount was adjusted to the actual settlement amount of $21, 500 during the year ended June 30,
2006.

In July 1999, the Company became aware of historical releases of hazardous substances at its manufacturing
facility located at 180 ‘V an Riper Avenue, Elmwood Park, New Jersey. The Company promptly notified the
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (“NJDEP”) as required by the New Jersey Spill
Compensation and Control Act (“Spill Act™), N.J.S.A. 58:10-23.11, and retained the services of environmental
remediation consultants to perform a full site characterization in accordance with the NJDEP’s Technical
Requirement for Site Remediation, N.J.A.C. 7:26E-1.1. In June 2001, the Company entered into a fixed price
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remediation agreement with Resource Control Corporation (“RCC”). The remaining cost estimated for
remediation of the site under the fixed price remediation agreement with RCC is approximately $408,000, most
of which is expected to be paid in fiscal 2010. As of June 30, 2006, the Company consulted with RCC and due
to the delayed completion schedule for the remediation, the payment requirements under the fixed price

remediation agreement will be made in fiscal 2010, rather than fiscal 2006 as originally estimated in fiscal 2001.

The change in the expected timing of the remaining payments under the fixed priced remediation agreement
resulted in a fiscal 2006 expense totaling $41,000.

Tax Contingency

In a letter dated February 23, 2006, the Company received a Notice of Assessment Related to Final
Audit Determination from the New Jersey Division of Taxation that Kreisler Industrial’s Business Tax Returns
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001 are subject to additional income tax. The amount of
the final audit determination totaled $89,591 of which $59,493 is additional income tax expense, $5,503 is for
penalties and $24,595 is for interest through March 15, 2006. In accordance with the appropriate New Jersey
statutes, the Company protested the final audit determination and requested an informal administrative
conference with the Conference and Appeals Branch. As of September 15, 2006, no informal administrative
conference has been scheduled by the Conference and Appeals Branch to meet with the Company. The amount
of interest potentially due is dependent on the final settlement date and is subject to increase.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain oral statements made by management of the Company from time to time and certain statements
contained herein or in other periodic reports filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange

Commission are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,

as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, with respect to results of
operations and the business of the Company. All such statements, other than statements of historical facts,
including those regarding market trends, the Company's financial position and results of operations, business
strategy, projected costs, and plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking
statements. In general, such statements are identified by the use of forward-looking words or phrases including,
but not limited to, “estimates,” “intended,” “will,” "should," "may," "believes," "expects," "expected,"

"anticipates,” and "anticipated" or the negative thereof or variations thereon or similar terminology. These
forward-looking statements are based on the Company's current expectations. Although the Company believes
that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that
such expectations will prove to be correct. These forward-looking statements represent the Company's current
judgment. The Company disclaims any intent or obligation to update its forward looking statements. Because
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, the Company's actual results could differ materially
from those set forth in or underlymg the forward- lookmg staternents.

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Company’s corporate office is located at the Kreisler Industrial’s manufacturing facility in
Elmwood Park, New Jersey. The Company’s New Jersey location consists of a 52,000 square foot leased
facility. The facility is approximately 60 years old and the current term under the existing lease agreement was
to expire on September 30, 2006. On July 11, 2006, Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation and Kreisler Industrial
Corporation entered into an Extension of Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement Extension™) with the facility
owner, T & T Investment Company. The Lease Agreement Extension increased the lease rate and extended the
lease term from October 1, 2006 through September 30, 2012. At June 30, 2006, the remaining rent under the
current lease agreement was $62,000. Including the lease payment amounts in the Lease Agreement Extension,
the remaining balance on the facility lease is $1,934,000.

The Company’s Kreisler Polska subsidiary operates from a 10,000 square foot leased facility in
Krakow, Poland. Kreisler Polska’s lease agreement has no lease end date but does require six months notice of
cancellation by either party prior to vacating the facility. The current monthly lease rate for the Kreisler Polska
facility is approximately $3,500 (based on the Polish zloty exchange rate as of June 30, 2006).

3




Capital expendltures during fiscal 2006 totaled $571,000 of which $449,000 was financed using the
Company’s available cash resources and $122,000 was financed under capital leases. The average ages of
equipment located at Krelsler Industrial and Kreisler Polska facilities are approximately seven years and one
year, respectively. Management believes that the Company’s present industrial plant facilities are suitable for
the Company’s current and near term operations and are adequately insured.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The Company’ s Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “KRSL.”
The following table sets forth the hlgh and low per share prices (quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without
retail mark-up, mark- dcwn or commission and may not represent actual transactions) for the Common Stock on
the NASDAQ Capital Market for each quarter in the two-year period ended June 30, 2006.

- Fiscal Year 2006 Fiscal Year 2005
Quarter High Low High Low
First Quarter - September 30 $8.24 $5.04 $8.06 $5.48
Second Quarter -Decembcr 31 8.22 5.01 7.46 4.90
Third Quarter - March 31 10.47 6.81 6.50 490
Fourth Quarter - June 30 16.50 9.00 10.15 4.59

The Company has not paid any dividends during the last two fiscal years. The holders of the
Company’s Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends when, and if, declared by the Board of Directors
out of funds legally avallable for such dividends. It is the Company’s current policy not to pay dividends and to
retain earnings for funire growth of the Company.

At June 30, 2006, the Company had approximately 104 stockholders of record.
The following table reflects information for the Company’s equity compensation plan as of

June 30, 2006.
Equity Compensation Plan Information

(a) &) (©)
Number of
) securities remaining
Number of for future issuance
securities to be under equity

issued upon exercise ~ Weighted-average compensation plans
of outstanding exerctse price of (excluding securities
options, warrants outstanding options,  reflected in column

and rights warrants and rights (a)
Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders | 37,501 $3.15 111,378
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders - - -
Total ! 37,501 $3.15 111,378




ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
Overview

We manufacture precision metal components and assemblies primarily for use in military and
commercial aircraft engines and in industrial gas turbines. Our products include tube assemblies of multiple
sizes-and configurations as well as-machined components. Assemblies may be made of various materials,
including titanium, nickel and stainless steel. These high quality engineered tube assemblies transfer fuel, oil, -
water, air and hydraulic fluids.

Sales of our products are typically made through an in-house sales staff. In July 2006, Kreisler
Industrial engaged an independent company to represent, on a commission basis, Kreisler Industrial for sales to
the U.S. Government. All products are manufactured to the designs and specifications of the particular
customer.. Orders are received through competitive proposals, which are made in response to requests for bids
from contractors who supply engines to various branches of the United States Department of Defense or to
commercial businesses.

We experienced significant sales growth in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 as our sales increased
approximately $5,275,000, or 37%, from approximately $14,448,000 to approximately $19,723,000. Our sales
growth is primarily attributable to contmued growth in market demand in the aerospace and mdustnal gas
turbme markets;

Fiscal 2005 Sales $14,448,000
. Sales Increase by Industry Market Area:

‘ - Commercial $2,521,000

Military' - _ 1,373,000

Industrial Gas Turbine 1,381,000
' o Total Sales Increase 5,275,000
' Fiscal 2006 Sales ' $19,723,000

'The military market area includes the sale of components used in military applications to both
- the U.S Government and to non-governmental defense contractors.

. +-/Approximately $2,521,000, or 48%, of our fiscal 2006 sales growth of approximately'$5,275,000 is
attributable to higher sales of commercial aircraft engine componeénts. Sales of components used in the
.PW4000 -V2500 and CF34 aircraft engines accounted for approx1mate]y 75% of the increase due to strong

- _;aﬂermarket demand for. PW4000 components and new engme demand for the V2500 and CF34 components.

JEHA, _:‘-,Our_sales_-.of military engine components for theé F119 aircraft engine (used on the F/A-22 Raptor) and
. the F135:aircraftiengine (used on the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter) accounted' for most of the $1,373,000, or 26%,
«increase.in-sales to:that-industry market area. Qur sales increase of military components was partially reduced

by Iower sales of spare parts to the 1J.S. Government.

w5 * nsrApproximately, $15381,000, or 26%, of our fiscal 2006 sales growth is atiributable to increased sales of
-s.components used-in industrial gas turbine applications. The sales i increase is primarily attributable to after-
. ¢smarket.demand. for fuel ring components used in the Siemens 501F'industrial gas turbine. We expect demand
+for these replacement components to decline as Siemens replaces the current fuel ring components with an
_interim replacement configuration, which will be followed in two or three years by a final replacement
+ configuration...We expect to provide components for the interim and new replacement configurations but are’
unable to determine the net effect on our sales at this time,
. '« Our customers continue to demand lower prices and we have sought to meet this demand by reducing
«» our costs through the use of lean manufacturing techniques. We have used these lean manufactunng techniques
« to create manufacturing cells at Kreisler Industrial and expect to add additional manufacturing cells during fiscal
2007. The objective of the manufacturing cells is to reduce production time and improve quality. We have had

positive results in achieving these objectives in our existing manufacturing cells.



Our customers also seek to lower their costs through a growing rehance on suppliers located outside of
the United States. Krelsler Industrial competes globally with competltors located in China, Mexico and Europe.
We rely on Kreisler Polska to provide Kreister Industrial with machmed components reflecting Poland’s lower

- manufacturing costs and'strong technical skills. Whlle we expect our customers to source some of the
components manufactured by Kreisler Industrial to supphers located out51de the United States, we are also.

. positioned to offer our customers the current machining and future manufactunng capabilities of Kreisler -

-Polska. As aresult, we expect that sales gains by Kreisler Polska will enable us to offset a portion of any loss of
component sales we formerly made in the Umted States to suppliers outside the United States.

Kreisler Polska contmues to increase the number of machined components it provides to Kreisler
Industrial. We intend to continue to increase our investments in Kreisler Polska’s machining and manufacturing
capabilities. As part of that planned investment, Kreisler Polska reached an Additional Project Funding
Agreement (“APFA”) w1th the Polish Enterprise Development Agency (“PEDA”) which enables Kreisler
Polska to receive additional funding from the PEDA based on ant1c1pated capital expenditures. We expect this -

* agreement to contribute!40% of the cost (up to a maximum of 1.2 mrlhon Polish zloty, approximately $369,000

at the exchange rates as;of June 30, 2006) of the total qualified capital expendlture of 3.0 million Polish zloty
* (approximately $923,000 at the exchange rate as of June 30, 2006). These anticipated capital expenditures will
1mt1ally be financed using equity or additional paid in capital prov1ded by the Company to Kreisler Polska.

Approxlmately'33% of our fiscal 2006 and 2005 sales are for trtamum-based components The
improvement in the aerospace markets and the 1ncreased use of titanium in acrospace apphcatlons has resulted
in increased demand for titanium. As a result, we have experienced i increases in both the cost and lead-time of .
titanium altoys. The June 30, 2006 Form 10-Q of one titanium suppller Allegheny Technologies Incorporated,
. reports that for the six months ended June 30, 2006, their year—over-year volume of titanium produced increased
5.5% while their average price per pound increased approx1mately 72%. This strong demand for titanium' has
caused aerospace manufacturers such as Boemg and Airbus'to enter 1nto long-term titanium supply agreements
(The Wall Street Joumal August. 14, 2006). Though we have generally been successful in passing along
titanium price mcreases to our customers and supporting our titanium requrrements we may be neganvely
impacted by possible. mterruptrons of titanium supply. which could affect customer deliveries or by price
increases that may not be passed through to customers immediately.

Military alrcraﬁ engine components for-the F119: and F135 i engines represented approxrmately 66% of
our fiscal 2006 m111tary aircraft engine component sales of $9,237,000, The future for both these programs - X
relies on Congressmnal fundmg authorization, -which may alter the amount or timing of ‘dvailable- fundrng For#
example, the F119 arrcraft engine is used on the F-22A Raptor which, according to the New York Times'(Tuly
11, 2006), is funded for a total of 181 aircraft, while the United States Air Force wants at least 381 aircraft. As
of June 12,2006, Lockheed Martin, the manifacturer of the F-22A, reported that 71 aircraft had beén delivered.
We are unable to determme the amount or tlmmg of the funding as may be determined: by Congress and'howt. i<
such funding may 1mpact us. In addition, our pnmary customer for- these components may seek to have'these %
components manufictired in theif own facilitiés located outside 'of the United States. ' cgimo . dt
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Our growth opportumtles are potentially limited by our historic reliance on a few significant customers.
Ourlargest customer has ‘established- manufacturmg operatlons out51de the United States'that piovide similar
and, in some-cases, greater capabilities than we offer.: We expéct this ‘customer tg considér transfemngﬁ LRa 3' A
components manufactured by us to these | operatlons We'will seek'to accommodate our customers needs
through our Kréisler: Polska’subsidizry or through lower costs achleved through cost reductlon iditiatives at :'
Kreisler Industrial. T P T L R

* t\'.‘ 3.

We are also i in the process of identifying and evaluating new computer software to enablénis to improve®
the integration of our manufacturing and financial systems and i mcrease the integration of our proprietary supply
chain management S0 Ftware We antrclpate the n‘utlal 1mp1ementat10n phase to be durmg 2007 .

. s .




. We periodically evaluate inventory to determine the likely future usage of those items in inventory. As
a result of these evaluations, we will typically record a charge (also known to as-a write-down) against inventory
for items that have historical limited usage.- We also make judgments as to future demand requirements based
upon customer orders in backlog or the propensity of a customer to order a component from the Company. If -
such future demand requirements are unlikely, we will record a charge against inventory. During the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006, we recorded a charge against inventory of approximately $215,000:; This charge amount
of approximately $215,000 included a reduction-in value of $71,000 for fiscal 2000 through fiscal 2005
inventory items that had already been written-down in value to a-nominal amount during each of their respective
fiscal years. Beginning with fiscal 2006, we will no longer maintain a nominal valuation amount. The recorded
inventory charge for fiscal 2006 for inventory items not prev1ously reduced in value was approx1mately
$144,000.

Results of Operations
(Al amounts rounded to the nearest thousand)

2006 Compared to 2005
Sales

Sales increased $5,275,000 or 37% to $19, 723,000 for the year ended June 30, 2006 compared with
$14,448,000 for the year ended June 30, 2005 The Company s sales and sales changes by mdustry market area

are as f‘ollows i
il

- Sales T . '|  Percent of Sales

Industry Market Area 2006 ‘ 2005 + . | - $Change .- | % Change || 2006 2005 -
- Commercial $ 8,067,000 | - $ -5546,000 |. §. 2,521,000 . ~ 45% "41% . -38%
Military .~ 9,237,000 |- - 7,864,000 | .- 1,373,000 : 17% | - 47%.| . .55%
Industrial Gas 'I‘urbme 2,419,000 . 1,038,000 }-- .- 1,381,000 |. -133% 12%.1 " - 1% |..

Total . . $ 19,723,000 | .. $ 14,448,000 | -$ .5,275,000 37% 100% 100% |

oTaer |y B

28 0ur ﬁscal 2006 sales of commercnal aircraft engine components totaled $8, 067 000 an increase of
$2,521,000, or-45%, compared to fiscal 2005 commercial aircraft engine component sales of $5,546,000. The .
- sales i increase is atiributable to hlgher demand for most commercial alrcraﬂ engine programs for.which'we are a |
prowder,ofcomponents FETO o T T - : N
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g ;Our sales .of military alrcraﬁ -engine components for ﬁscal 2006 totaled $9 237 000, an 1ncrease of . /.
$1,373,000 |or,17%, compared to fiscal 2005 militaryaircraft engine component sales of $7,864, 000. This . - ‘:
increaseis primarily attributable, to the, demand for components used in the-F119 and F135 engine program.
These components accounted for 77% of the i increase and.helped offset the decline in sales of spare parts to the ,
U.S. Government.

COTIOEZNY vBuike i Gab. . RS TTE PR :

i: Qur-increase, 1n the sale of 1ndustr1a1 .gas turbine. components is pnmanly attnbutable 10 an mcrease in,
aﬁermarket demand for components | used in the Siemens,;501F:turbine, generator. . As a.result, our ﬁscal 2006,
industrial gas turbine, sales increased $1,381,000,or 133%, t0.$2,419,000 compared to ﬁscal 2005 sales of; -
$1,038, 000 Ourlsales for, fiscal 2005 also included $312,000 ),which represented;the financial settlement of o
terminated purchase orders from a industrial gas turbine customer. , Pedoe

CostofGaodsSoId . e R
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: Cost of goods sold for ﬁscal 2006 was 84 0% of sales or $16 575 000 compared to 92 3% of sales, or
-$13,342,000, for fiscal 2005. Cost of goods sold for fiscal 2006 increased $3;233,000, or 24%, compared to
fiscal 2005. .




. The Company’scost of goods sold and gross margin are as follows:

Fiscal 2006 +  Fiscal 2005 . § Change % Change
Sales $19,723,000 $14,448,000 | $5,275,000 37%
Cost of goods sold (COGS™) 16,575,000 13,342,000 3,233,000 24%
COGS percentage of sales 84.0% 92.3% = 8.3%
Gross margin 3,148,000 1,106,000 2,042,000 185%
Gross margin percent 16.0% 71.7% - 8.3%

Our increase in cost of goods sold is primarily attributable to increased purchased material usage due to
higher revenues as well as an increase in employee-related costs and beneﬁts due to an overall increase in the
number of employees at Kreisler Industrial and Kreisler Polska. Our lmprovement in gross margin during fiscal
2006 is attributable to a year-over-year sales increase of 37% compared-to an increase in cost of goods sold of
24%.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2006 were 6.5% of sales, or $1,273,000,

compared to 6.0% of sales or $862,000, for fiscal 2005. Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal
2006 increased $411, 000 or 48%, compared to fiscal 2005.

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005 $ Change % Change
Sales $19,723,000 $14,448,000 $5,275,000 37%
Selling, general and administrative o
. expenses (“SG& A“) 1,273,000 862,000 41 1,009 fSA;
SG&A percentage. lof sales 6.5% 6.0% - —

Our increase in Iselling, general and administrative expenses is primarily the result of higher audit and
" tax accounting fees as well as increased employee payroll and benefit expenses These items represented ..  »

approxlmately 67% of the increase. : . gt

N ‘ o o it g
Income, Interest Expense and Taxes : ' ¥ ‘ Cnooy
. u ! RS €)
: r ' B ] I
Fiscal 2006 . Fiscal 2005 $ Change % Change .- gt

Sales $19,723,000 $14,448,000 - $5,275,000 . 37%

.._Total costs and expenses 17,848,000 - 14,205,000 @ 3,643,000 - . .. 26%:
Income from opérations : . 1,875,000 . 243,000 . 1,632,000 ,\ 672 A»- . ol

Interest & other Iincorne ) 118,000 74,000 44,000 oL 59%
- Interest & other expense "~ (75,000) - (75,000) ©  Foh B i
i i . } . OB v i, M nn" LN 5
*" ' Income before iricome taxes ' 1,918,000 - 317,000 - 1,601,000 g £505% e 114
-t ! : oo o DTS BT B PSSP B 1]
Income tax (expense) - ' -~ - (755,000) - (148,000) - (607,000} --* {1 410%107 e H

Net income | $1,163,000 $169,000 | $994,000 588%

! 3 ! ' L Wt i
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The income from operations for fiscal 2006 was $1 875,000, an increase of $1 632,000, or 672%, :
compared to the ﬁscal 2005 total of $243,000. ' g -

Interest i mcome of $1 18 000 for ﬁscal 2006 was $44,000 hlgher compared to fiscal 2005 and was ‘-
primarily attributable to higher interest rates. Interest expense of $75, 000 for fiscal 2006 was $75,000 higher
compared to fiscal 2005 and was primarily attributable to additional equipment acquired under capital leases as

g




well as the interest component accrued for the Notice of Assessment Related to Final Audit Determination
received from the New Jersey Division of Taxation.

Income before income taxes for fiscal 2006 was $1,918,000 compared to income before income taxes in
fiscal 2005 of $317,000.

Income tax expense for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $755,000 compared to income tax expense for
the year ended June 30, 2005 of $148,000. The components of income tax expense/(benefit) are discussed in
Note E to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Backlog

Our backlog as of June 30, 2006 was $20,800,000 compared to $16,800,000 at June 30, 2005. The ,
backlog increased $4,000,000 or 24%. Backlog is subject to change with reduced purchase order duration and
terminations. -Orders that have already been terminated by a customer are excluded from the backlog even if the
amount owed by a customer to us for the termination has not been paid.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During fiscal 2006, we primarily relied on our operating cash flow and cash on-hand to fund most
capital expenditures and working capital requirements. We also used capital leases to fund the acquisition of
two pieces of capital equipment totaling $122,000. The Company anticipates using operating cash flow, cash
on-hand and external financial sources such as bank debt and lines of credit for future capital expenditures and
working capital requirements.

Our cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2006 of $3,296,000 decreased $114,000, or 3%, compared to
cash and cash equivalents of $3,410,000 at June 30, 2005. This decrease is primarily attributable to increases in
accounts receivable and inventory.

-Cash in the amount of $111,000 was restricted as of June 30, 2006 in accordance with the application
requirements of an Additional Project Funding Agreement between Kreisler Polska and the Polish Enterprise
Development Agency. Kreisler Polska also entered into a line of credit agreement as part of the same
application requirements. At June 30, 2006, the outstanding borrowing under this line of credit totaled $55, 000
(at June 30, 2006 exchange rates). The line of credit was repaid in full during' August 2006 and the restriction *
on the $111,000 of cash was simultancously lifted. The Additional Project Funding Agreement was finalized in
July 2006 and enables Kreisler Polska to receive additional funding from the Polish Enterprise Development
Agency SO

Ly
Through June 30, 2006 we have provided Kreisler Polska with equity investments totaling $660 000, a
loan of $32,000 and amounts due for provided goods and services totaling $126,000.

Cash provided by operatmg activities for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $35 1,000 compared to
$236,000 for the year: ended June 30, 2005. This increase was primarily attributable to our net income of
$1,163,000, deprematlon and amortization, as well as décreases in the deferred tax asset and other current assets,
and increases in accrued expenses and income taxes payable for the year ended June 30, 2006. These inflows
were partlally offset by increases in accounts receivable and mventorles and a decrease in accounts payable

t g

Cash used in investing activities for the year ended June 30 2006 was $449,000 and is prlmanly
attributable to the purchase of capital equipment. Capital acquisitions for fiscal 2006 totaled $571,000, of which
$449,000 was for equipment purchased using our available cash resources and $122,000 was for capital.
equipment acquired under capital leases. We believe that adequate liquidity is available from operating cash .
flow as well as cash on-hand to cover anticipated capital expenditures of $1,200,000 for the year ending June
30, 2007. Of this $1,200,000, we expect to provide Kreisler Polska with approximately $1,000,000 during fiscal
year 2007 for the purchase of capital equipment. Under the APFA, Kreisler Polska expects to receive $369,000
(based on exchange rates as of June 30, 2006) from the PEDA approximately six months after we have .
completely funded the qualified capital expenditures of approximately $923,000 (based on exchange rates as of
. 9




' June 30, 2006). ‘As a result, we anticipate that $369,000 of our capital expendlture cost will be received by
Kreisler Polska from the PEDA during calendar year 2007 and this amount will be used by Kreisler Polska to -
fund elther its workmg capital requ1rements or to purchase addmonal capltal equlpment

" Cash- ﬂows from ﬁnancmg actwmes for the year ended June 30, 2006 consisted of $83,000 for
'repayment of obl1gat1ons under capital leases, $55,000 from the proceeds of a line of credit established by
: Kreisler Polska as part of the application requ1rements for the APFA and $5,000 from the exercise of stock
options. Cash flows from financing activities for the year ended June 30 2005 totaled $290,000 and were due to
the exercise of 64,000 stock options under the Company’s 1997 Stock 0pt1on Plan and $235,000 associated with
“the collection of the spl1t dollar life insurance policy receivable. These items were partially offset by eapltal
lease payments totaling $25, OOO for the year ended June 30, 2005.

, The creation of Kre1sler Polska exposes the Company to gains and losses due to fluctuations of a foreign
.currency. As of June 30 2006 the translation adjustment amounted to $29 000. The net effect after adjusting for
a tax benefit of $11,000 i 1s a reduction in stockholders’ equity of $18, 000 ‘Current period realized foreign
‘currency gains and losses are included as part of sellmg, general and administrative expenses. As of June 30,
12006, this loss amounted to $3,500. '

Working capital at June 30 2006 totaled $9, 661 000 ‘We believe this level is suffic:lent to support our
working capital needs during fiscal 2007. L

. Results of Operations

(Al amounts rounded to the nearest thousand)

2005 Compared to 2004 -

Sales

" QOur sales mcreased $2,152,000 or 18% to 514 448, 000 for the year ended June 30, 2005 compared with,
+$12,296, 000 for the year ended June 30, 2004. Our sales and sales changes by industry market arca are as..

follows
. P SR,
‘ ) Sales Percent of Sales
¢ Industry Market Area|- 2005 .- el 2004 . .__$ Change ‘% Change>|* 2005.-. | 12004
Commercial $ 5546,000. |$ 5,164,000 |§ 382,000 o 3% 2 38% |- ui0d2%: 5
Military 7,864,000 6,111,000 1,753,000 29% 55% 50%
| -Industrial Gas Turbine |- ~:-1,038,000 . [.. 1,021,000 - 17,000 - | v 2%, | L 7% e 8%
Total | $ 14,448,000 | .5 12,296,000,;‘ $. 2,152,000 v 18% | - 100% - [seer100%d T

f

Our, sales for the year, .ended June;30, 2005 were positively. 1mpacted by. an increase in market, demand
for commercial aircraft engmes for which we are a supplier of componehts Our commercial aircraft engine :
sales increased $382 OO(ll or 7% compared to the year ended June 30, 2004 Increased or new- demand for
- commercial engine. programs such as the,CF-34, GP7000 and PW4000 more than offset the tdeclmes assocwted [

" with the conclusion of our-involvement on. the AE3007.engine.
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“QOur sales of components used in military engine appl1cat1ons dl.lrmg fiscal 2005 mcreased $1,753,000 or
29% compared to fiscal 2004 This increase is prtmarlly attributable to the increased production of components
used in the F119 and F135 engine programs and offset the declines in FlOO engine component demand. The
1F119 and F135 engines’ power the F/A-22 Raptor and the F-35 Joint Stnke Flghter The F/A-22 is currently in
production while the F-35 is in the development phase with product1on to start in 2009. F/A-22 requirements
* beyond fiscal 2006 remalm uncertain given the objective of its manufacturer to move components currently
produced by us to manufactunng sites outside of the United States as well as Congressional concerns regarding
- the overall cost of the F/A-22 aircraft which may result in further reductrons in the number purchased. Spare
parts sales to the U.S. Government remained relatlvely flat.




For the year ended June 30, 2005, our sales to the gas turbine industry of $1,038,000 were $17,000, or
2%, higher compared to the prior fiscal year. Excluding the effect of the settlement of terminated purchase
orders from an industrial gas turbine customer totaling $312,000 ($63,000 and $249,000 received-in the first and
‘second quarters of fiscal 2005, respectively), shipments of 1ndustr1al gas turbine components totaled $726,000 as
this market remained soft.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold for fiscal year. 2005 was 92.3% of sales, or $13 342, 000 compared to 103.5% of

sales, or $12,723,000, for fiscal year 2004, resulting in an 11.2 percentage point increase in gross margin. Cost
of goods sold for fiscal year 2005 increased $619,000 compared to cost of goods sold for fiscal year 2004.
TIncreases in information technology outsourcing fees, factory supplies, travel-related costs, shipping charges and
.office-related expenses were offset by decreases in certain employee payroll and benefit expenses, total
insurance costs as well as lower tooling costs. Of the net $767,000 decrease in cost of goods sold for these -
items, $506,000 is attributable to the reclassification of certain employee payroll and benefit expenses from cost
“of goods sold to Selling, general and administrative expenses. This net $767,000 decrease in cost of goods sold
was offset by higher purchased material costs as well as start-up costs for Kreisler Polska.- Material usage -
increased $1,397,000 for fiscal year 2005 due to higher sales and increased purchased material content.
Depreciation expenses increased $67,000. Revenue sharing expenses attributable to the Rolls-Royce AE3007
engine program declined $183,000 due to the completion of the Company’s involvement in that program. '

Sellmg, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2005 were 6 0% of sales or $862 000 compared
to 5.5% of sales or $680,000 for the prior fiscal year. This increase of $182,000, or 27%, is primarily the result
of increases in legal, director and accounting fees as well as higher employee payroll and benefit expenses
partially offset by lower sales commissions. The increase in employee payroll and benefit expenses is due to .
fiscal 2005 changes in management positional responsibilities as well'as the duplication of certain administrative
personnel required during the transition of the corporate.office from St Petersburg, Florida to the Company 8
facrhty located in ElImwood Park, New Jersey : . .

Inconre, Interest Expense and T axes
CoodRR m o
,U Our mcome from operatrons for the year ended Junc 30, 2005 was $243 000 compared to the loss from
. operatrons as of June 30; 2004 of $1 107 000 ‘ .
- ) N . . . -
l_m__ Interest mcome for fiscal 2005 rncreased $24 000 or 48% to 74,000 from $50 000 for ﬁscal year 2004
The increase is'the result of higher.interest rates and increased cash investment. .. -

P

" wiilThe'i mcome before income taxes for 2005 was $3 17,000 compared to the loss before mcome taxes in

2004:0£:313057,000.  woriv ot 13w BN e T £
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Income!tax:expense. for the 3 year ended June 30 2005 wias $148 000 compared to’'income tax beneﬁt for the year
ended June 30, 2004 of $399,000. The components of income tax expense/(benefit) are discussed in'Note'E to *
our consolidated financial statements. .
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Contractual Obligations

M

The Company is obligated to make future payments under vanous contracts such as operating or capltal
lease agreements. The following table represents the Company’s contractual cash obligations as of June 30,
2006 and the estimated timing of future cash payments:

FY2009

Total FY2007 FY2008 FY2010 FY2011 | Thereafter
Capital leases $461,836 [ $103,643 | $112,227 | $121,523 | $102,812 $21,631 | § -
Operating leases ' 21038,669 303,594 320,105 324,075 326,226 342,169 422,500
.Environmental"’ 482,330 -- L - - | 467,630 - 14,700
Total $21972,835 | $407,237 | $432,332 | $445,598 | $896,668 | $363,800 | $437,200

o Environmental remediation costs in accordance with the contract between the Company and Resource Control Corporation

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates include the Company’s accounting for
environmental remedlatlon inven

management.

Environmental Remedlanon
With regard to the fixed price environmental remediation agreement between the Company and Resource
'Control Corporation entered into in June 2001, the assumption has been made that no new costs, above those
identified in the original ﬁxed price agreement, will be incurred as the project continues. The Company
assumes that there will be no future discoveries on the site that will requlre additional remediation. As of June
.30, 2006, the Company c0nsulted with Resource Control Corporation, the company responsible for the fixed
price remediation, and concluded that, due to the delayed completion schedu]e for the remediation, the payment
_requirements under the ﬁxed price remediation agreement will bé'made in ﬁscal 2010 rather than fiscal 2006 as
ongmally estimated in ﬁscal 2001. The change in the expected timing of the remammg payments under the '
“fixed price remediation agreernent resulted in a fiscal 2006 expense totalmg $41,000.

Inventory Valuation

tory valuation, revenue recognition, accounts receivable and accounting for
deferred income taxes. In particular, the accountmg for these areas requires significant judgments to be made by
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Inventory valuation for the periods ending December 31 and Juné 30is based on actial physu:al mventory N
counts. For the periods endmg September 30 and March 31 inventory. valuatlon is based.on intérnal perpetual
,inventory records. The Company compares the physwal inventory valuatlon for the periods endmg December.31
-and June 30 with the perpetual inventory record valuatlon At June 30, 2006 the comparison resitlted:in'ay- - 12U
“valuation difference of 2|%, which the.Company believes is primarily attnbutable to the/materialjscrap.rate 2
percentage. Any substantial variance in the actual matenal scrap rate percentage couldisignificantly.increase or.
"decrease profits due to changes in the costs'of goods sold. ,For the two quarters in which internal perpetual’: .z
mventory records are uscd to value inventory, raw materials, work in process and finished goods.inventories are®
'allocated based on the same percentage of total mventory that existed at, the time of the most recent phy51cal

inventory valuation..
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The Company penodlcally evaluates inventory to determine the llkely future usage of those:items-inn. v... 1
inventory. As aresult, the Company will typically record a charge agamst inventory that has historical limited
.usage. The Company also makes judgments as to future demand requlrements based upon customer orders in
- backlog or the propensnty of a customer to order a component from the Company If such future-demand- g
requirements are unlikely, the Company will record a charge against inventory. During the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2006, the Company recorded a charge against inventory of approximately $215,000. This charge amount
of approximately $215,000 included a reduction in value of $71,000 for:fiscal 2000 through fiscal 2005

_ inventory items that had|already been written-down in value to a nommal amount during each of their respective
fiscal years. Beginning with fiscal 2006, we will no longer maintain a nommal valuation amount. The recorded

inventory charge for fisca

12

1 2006 for inventory items not previously reduced in value was approximately
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$144,000. : The recorded inventory charges for fiscal 2005 and 2004 totaled approximately $94,000 and

approximately $128,000, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of products is recognized at the time title and the risks and rewards of ownership pass to

our customers. This is typically when the products are shipped per customers’ instructions, the sales price is

fixed and determinable, and collections are reasonably assured. In those instances in which customer quality
and product acceptance are performed at the customer’s location, the Company has a high degree of certainty,
based on historical performance, that the product will be accepted by the customer. The Company’s
manufacturing cycle time is typically less than two weeks.

Accounts Receivable-Trade and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable-trade represents uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms
generally requiring payment within 30-90 days from the invoice date. Follow-up correspondence is made if
unpaid accounts receivable go beyond the invoice due date. Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the
specific invoices identified on the customer’s remittance advice.

Accounts receivable — trade (net) are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. The carrying amounts of accounts receivable-trade is reduced by a valuation allowance that reflects
management’s best estimate of the amounts that will not be collected. Management individually reviews all
accounts receivable balances that exceed the due date and estimates the portion, if any, of the balance that will
not be collected. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a
credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable- trade.

Accounts receivable — trade is net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts of $40,000 and

$10,000 at June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The estimated uncollectible accounts receivable amount was '

increased on June 30, 2006 from $10,000 to $40,000. The increase of $30,000 is to record charges for items in
accounts receivable that are unlikely to be collected by the Company. A final determination of the status of
these uncoilectible accounts receivable will be made during fiscal 2007,

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is recognized at applicable U.S. or international tax rates. Certain revenue and expense
items may be recognized in one period for financial statement purposes and in a different period for i 1ncome tax
reporting. The tax effects of such differences are reported as deferred income taxes.

Essentially all earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiary, Krelsler Polska, are expected to be remvested

in overseas expansion. Since no foreign earnings currently exist, an incremental U.S. or foreign tax on”
repatriation of such earnings cannot be estimated.

Reclassifications

Beginning with the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the three months ended September 30, 2005 and Form 10-
KSB/A (Amendment No. 1) for the year ended June 30, 2005 filed with the Securities and Exchange *
Commission (the “SEC”), the Company reclassified certain employee payroll and ‘benefit expenses from cost of
goods sold to selling, general and administrative expenses. This reclassification incorporated fiscal 2005
changes in management positional responsibilities as well as the transition of the duties and responsibilities of ~
the former St. Petersburg, Florida corporate office to the Company’s facility in Elmwood Park, New Jersey.
The application of this reclassification to fiscal 2005 results in an increase of $506,046 in selling, general and
administrative expenses and a corresponding equal decrease in cost of goods sold. This reclassification had no
effect on the total costs and expenses or the net income of the Company for fiscal 2005.
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Fiscal 2005 Reclassifications Rectassification

Fiscal 2005 Amount from . Fiscal 2005 .

COGS to SG&A {Reclassified)

Sales $14,447,801 $ - $14 447 801

Cost of goods sold (ICOGS”) .. 13,848,357 - (506,046) 13, 342 311

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A ") 356,395 . 506,046 862,441
Tota!l costs and expenses 14,204,752 - 14,204,752 .
Income from operations ©§ 243,049 ' - T8 243,049

Refer to Note A in the “Notes to Consolrdated Fmanmal Staternents” included in Item 7 Financial Statements for
other mforrnatlon regardmg the Company 8 accounting pohcxes

Compliance with Environmental Laws

The Company mamtams a sewer use permit issued by the Passalc Valley Sewerage Commlssmners
(“PVSC”) authorizing thle Company to discharge industrial effluent from its Kreisler Industrial manufacturing
facility located at 180 Van Riper Avenue, Elmwood Park New Jersey” mto the PVSC Waste Treatment facility.
Kreisler Industrial followed the requirements of Federal Regulation 40 CFR 413 and Section 313.1 of the PVSC
Rules and Regulations. In July 2005, the Company was notified by the PVSC that the Company was in
violation of the daily maxrmum limit for nickel and total metals and, as a result, had incurred a serious violation.
These violations occurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The Company was also notified that it is

. in significant non-comphanee and subject to enforcement action. The Clompany retained the services of an
environmental remedlatlon consultant and immediately removed the suspected cause of these violations from its
industrial effluent dlscharge The Company has also retained legal counsel. The Company has implemented
processes to eliminate the re-occurrence of this type of violation. The Company approved and executed a
Settlement Agreement w1th the PVSC in January 2006. Upon receipt of a fully executed Settlement Agreement
from the PVSC in February 2006, the Company paid a settlement amount of $21,500. Based on the previously
estimated range of penalties, the Company accrued a charge against eammgs of $37,500 for the year ended June
30, 2005. This amount was adjusted to the actual settlement amount of $21 500 during the year ended June 30,
2006. |

Early in fiscal year 2000, the Company became aware of hlstorlcal releases of hazardous substances at
the facility located at 180 Van Riper Avenue, Elmwood Park, New Jersey (hereinafter the “Facility”). Based on
the results of tests conducted at the Facility, the Company discovered that both the soil and groundwater at the

Facility, and possibly offsue were contaminated with tetrachloroethylene (“PCE”). While the Company cannot
be certain about the source of this condition, the Company used PCE for degreasing and other similar purposes
from about 1959, when 1t commenced operation at the Facility, until appr0x1mate1y 1985, when it replaced PCE
with another cleaning solution. :

Promptly after learmng of this condition, the Company notified: Lhe New Jersey Department of
-Environmental Protectlon (“NJDEP”) as required by the New Jersey Sp111 Compensation and Control Act (“Spill
Act”), N.J.S.A. 58:10- 23 11, and retained the services of Pleasant Hill Consultants and The Whitman
Companies to perform a 'full site characterization in accordance with the NJDEP’s Technical Requirements for
Site Remediation, N.J. ALC. 7:26E-1.1.

The site charactenzatlon was completed and an agreement was s:gned with Resource Control
Corporation for the remed1at10n of the site. The remaining cost for remedlatlon is approximately $408,000,
most of which will be pa1d by the Company in fiscal 2010 (see Note J to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements).-

The Company notified its liability insurance carriers, which 1ssued liability policies to the Company
during the period from 1959 to 1985 and was reimbursed a total of approximately $2,900,000. The Company
does not anticipate any ﬁ.lrther recoveries. The Company believes, baseéd upon the facts as currently known, that
its recoveries from its llablllty policies will cover substantially all of the remediation expenses and other
liabilities associated with the releases. : ,
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ITEM7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" The following consolidated financial staterents of the Company and its subsidiaries and the Reports of the
'Independent Registered Pubhc Accounting Firms are mcluded herein:

Consolldated Balance Sheets - June 30, 2006 and 2005
Consohdated Statements of Operatlons Three Years Ended June 30, 2006

Consohdated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equlty and Comprehenswe Incomie - Three Years :
Ended June 30, 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Three Years Ended June 30, 2006
- Notes to the Consolidated Finéncial‘Statements

' Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
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" Kreisler Manufacturing|Corporation and Subs:dtartes
_ Consolidated Balance Sheets

“June 30, - ' . - 2006 C 2005 ¢
; ‘ — . . 1 ;
: Assets '
' Cash and cash equivalents ' . | - $3,295,947 . $ 3,409,552
"~ Accounts recewable trade (net) _ ' 4, 480 295 3,201,376
' Inventories " : : -3, 253 420 - u '25817,894
© Deferred tax asset B “ 42 654 “t 166,000
Other current assets , 109,814 . .229,551
i Total current assets | . - 11,182,130 9,824,373
| : Sl : _
. Property, plant, and equipment, net - ' 1,5:90,879 ' 1,491,166
| Deferred tax asset 238,989 261,800
| Total non-current assets - " 1,829.868 1,752,966 °
i | - i . '$13,011,998 $11,577,339

| . Co ) \ . _ |

. Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

i

* Liabilities

. Accounts payable - trade $ 8‘19 974 $ 1,049,613
Accrued expenses ' 483 030 . 112,837

| Income taxes payable ‘ : 59,820 -

_ Line of credit payable 54,810 -

. Obligation under capital leases, current pomon 1'03,643, 76,869

' Accrued environmental costs ] - 426,825

. Total current liabilities 1,521,277 B 1,666,144

| S

f Obligation under capital leases, net of current portion 358,193 : 345,978

i Accrued environmental costs 407,577 16,541

1 Total long-term liabilities ' 765,770 362,519
i Commitments and contingencies !

| Stockholders' equity

, Common stock, $.125 par value; 3,000,000 shares

¢ authotized; 1,830,447 shares and 1,826,447 shares issued

and outstanding at June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely 228,806 228,306

. Additional pald—m capltal ‘ ‘ 544 716 -540,216

t Retained earnings . 9, 968 591 8,805,139
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . (17,162) (24,985)

- __Total stockholders' equity - F 10,724,951 9,548,676

‘ - | , ' . ' $13,011,998 $11,577,339

|

"The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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i Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries
' Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended June 30, 2006 20058 2004
- Net sales $19,723,254  $14,447,801 $12,295,688
b Cost of goods sold 16575023 13342311 12,722,800
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,272,901 862,441 679,726
‘Total costs and expenses 17,847,924 14,204,752 13,402,526
Income (loss) from operations 1,875,330 243,049 (1,106,838)
Interest and other income 117,758 74,141 49,990
Interest and other expenses {74,636) --
‘j Income (loss) before income taxes 1,918,452 317,190 (1 ,05§,848j
' | Income tax {expense) benefit (755,000) (147,600) 398,600
"+ Net income (loss) $1,163,452 $169,590 $(658,248)
Earnings {loss) per common share: L
; Net income (loss) — basic $0.64 $0.10 $(0.37) .
Net income (loss) - diluted $0.63 $0.10 $(0.37)
Weighted average common shares — basic 1,827,620 1,762,973 1,762,447 -
Weighted average common shares — diluted 1,851,355 1,783,305 1,762,447 -

17
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Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries

—
i

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity aiidj‘Comprehen'sive Income
Years ended June 30, J2()06, 2005 and 2004 '

;
i

o

) . - l .
~ The accompanying notes are an integral'part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Common Stock . Accumulated
Outstanding Additional Other _Total
| . Pald-in Retained. Comprehensive Stockholders’
- Shares Amounts Capital Earnings Loss Equity
: , :
" Balances, July 1; 2003 1,762,447 . $220306'  $367,792 $9,293,797 § © . $9.881,895
. _NetLoss | . - |. (658.248) . (658,248)
. Balances, June 30, 2004 ‘ 1,763,447 220306 367,792 8,635,549 - 9,223,647
Comprehensive income: i N
Net income - - - 169,590 - 169,590
. Foreign currency translation _. ) ! . -
“adjustment” . - - . (24,985) (24,985)
* . Total comprehensive income - - .- - - '144!605‘
. Exercise of stock options : 64000 8000 72,000 . . 80,000
Tax benefit from exercise of stock '
‘options - - 100,424 - - 100,424
" Balances, June 30, 2005 1,826,447 228,306 540,2‘16 8,805,139 - (24,985) 9,548,676
* Comprehensive income: ‘ - ; ‘
* Net income - - - L,163452. - 1,163,452
**" Foreign currency translation-
‘¢ adjustment® ' - - . - 7,823 7,823
Total E:orﬁprehensive income - - - - - 1,171,275
- Exercise of stock options r 4,000 500 4,500 S L. 2 e 5,000
t _Balances, June 30, 2006 .- 1,830,447 . $228,806 $544,716 $9,968,591.. (517,162 - $10,724,951
! - I s 3 - 'j‘_} o e " . ST
Jom T e T ‘ o A L
+ = () Nevof tax benefit of $15,401 e
6@ Net of tax benefit of $11,439 s
RZERRR &
g‘-(‘-'- .. :‘.-_“’ b ) W ¢ . :
R Sl .i—
- N N 1




Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries .
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2006 2005 . 2004

Cash Flows From Operatmg Actmtles N
$ 1,163,452 5

Net income (loss) 169,590 $ (658,248)
' Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash
provided by (used in) operating activities: o ‘, E .
* Depreciation and amortization 471,459 382,454 315,585
.. Tax benefit from exercise of stock options ‘ R 100,424 - . - -
Deferred tax asset 146,157 10,600 73,900
_Increase (decrease) in cash attributable to changes in
" operating assets and liabilities: _
Accounts receivable — trade, net (1,278,919) (662,835) - © - (733,569)
\Inventories (435,526) (326,181) (36,205)
Income taxes receivable .- 437,422 298,300
‘Other current assets 119,737 {48,702) 155,083
"“Accounts payable - trade - (229,639) 521,514 8311
.. Accrued expenses 370,194 (189,728) . (75,647)
-Income taxes payable 59,820
“YAccrued environmental costs - X (35,789) (158,577) - - (426,635)
~_Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operatlng Actmtles 350,946 235,981 {1,079,125)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities . ' ‘ : i
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment . (448,697) (484,150) . .. - .(203,568)
~ Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (448,697) (484,150) -, m(203,568)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities : L
i Proceeds from line of credit payable .- (- 54,810 < we e amnom o
Receipt of split-dolldr life insurance recewab]e ST T T T 235450 0 T
s Proceeds from’éxercised stock'options , 52" "7, Lo 5,000 . 80,0003 37 2yt %
Repayment of obligations under capital leases (83,487) (25,223) -
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities (23,677) 290 227 - .
Effect of foreign currency translation 7.823 e,
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (113,605) 242,058+ ¢ - (1;282,693)
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 3,409,552 3,367,494 4,650,187
Cash and cash equivalents end of year $3,295,947 $3,409,552 $3,367,494
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informatlon '
Cash paid during the years for: _ :
Income taxes $ 552,484 $ - 3 -
Interest - o $ 74,636 $ 22,129 $ -
Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Investing
and Financing Activities:
Equipment acquired under capital leases .. ... ... ~§ 122475 . =8 -

448,070 1 v 1§ <
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A. Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Operations

Kreisler Manufacturmg Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Kreisler Industrial Corporation
(“Kreisler Industrial™) and Kreisler Polska Sp. z 0.0. (“Kreisler Polska”)i(collectwely “Kreisler” or the
“Company”), manufacture precision metal components and assemblies at facilities located in ElImwood Park,
New Jersey and Krakow] Poland primarily for use in military and commercial aircraft engines and in industrial
gas turbine engines. These products include tube assemblies of multrple srzes and configuration as well as
‘machined components. -

Principles of Consolidation
. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation and
its subsidiaries, all of wllich are wholly-owned. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from the sale of products is recognized at the time title and the risks and rewards of ownership
pass. This is typically when the products are shipped per the customersI instructions, the sales price is fixed and
- determinable, and collectrons are reasonably assured. In those 1nstances in which customer quality and product
acceptance are performed at the customer’s location, the Company has a high degree of certainty, based on
_historical performance, that the product wrll be accepted by the customer. The Company’s manufacturing cycle
time is typically less than two weeks. -

Cash and Cash Eqmvalents
The Company consrders all highly liquid instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less
at the date of acqulsmon to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2006 cash equrvalents consisted of money market
accounts and bank accounts aggregating approximately $3,185,000 compared to $3,400,000 at June 30, 2005.
~ As of June 30, 2006, cash in the amount of $111,000 was deposited in an interest bearing account and was
restricted until January 2007 in accordance with the application requrrements of an Additional Project Funding
Agreement between Kreisler Polska and the Polish Enterprise Development Agency.” This restriction was .
removed durmg Augustl2006 As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and at vanous times during the years, balances of
cash at ﬁnanc1al mstltunons exceeded the federally insured limit. The Company has not experienced any losses
'ln such accounts and belleves it is not subject to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents,
]
Accounts Receivable - T rade
' Accounts recewable trade represents uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade
. terms generally requmng payment within 30-90 days from the invoice date. Follow-up correspondence is made
- if unpaid accounts recewable go beyond the invoice due date. Payrnents of accounts receivable are al]ocated to
the specific invoices identified on the customer’s remittance advice.

Accounts recenvable—trade are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstandmg

" balances. The carrying amounts of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuatlon allowance that reflects -
management’s best estlmate of the amounts that will not be collected. Management individually reviews all
accounts receivable balances that exceed the due date and estimatés the pomon if any, of the balance that will
not be collected. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to eammgs and a
credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstandmg after management has used reasonable collectlon efforts are written off through a
charge against sales and a credit to accounts receivable- trade.

Accounts recewable trade is presented net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts of
$40,000 and $10,000 at June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The estlmated uncollectible accounts receivable
amount was increased on June 30, 2006 from $10,000 to $40,000. The increase of $30,000 is to record charges
2(




. for approximately $40,000 in accounts receivable that are unlikely to be collected by the Company. A final

determination of the status of these uncollectible accounts receivable will be made during fiscal 2007. The
Company may adjust the allowance, either up or down, as necessary to adjust for estimated uncollectible
accounts.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Asset and related accumulated depreciation
amounts are relieved from the accounts for retirements or dispositions. Depreciation on machinery and
equipment is computed using the double-declining method. Estimated useful lives of three to ten years is used
for machinery and equipment, while building improvements are amortized, using the straight line method, over
the shorter of either their economic useful lives or the term of the leases.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Balance sheet accounts are translated at the exchange rate in effect at cach balance sheet date; income
and expense accounts are translated at the average rates of exchange prevailing during the period. Gains and
losses on foreign currency transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are
included in the statement of operations within selling, general and administrative expenses. Adjustments related
to foreign currency translations are reflected in the accumulated other comprehensive loss component of the
statement of changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard (“*SFAS”) No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income". The national currency
of the foreign subsidiary is the functional currency.

Long-Lived Assets
In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
the Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. The Company assesses the recoverability of the
cost of the asset based on a review of projected undiscounted cash flows. In the event an impairment loss is
identified, it is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value of
the long-lived asset. No impairments were identified during the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Stock-Based Compensation - ”
The Company follows SFAS No. 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation." The prov1smns of
SFAS No. 123 allow companies to either expense the estimated fair value of stock options or to continue to follow
the intrinsic value method set forth in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion 25, "Accountmg for Stock
Issued to Employees" ("APB 25™), but disclose the pro forma effect on net income (loss) had the fair value of the
options been expensed. The Company has elected to continue to apply APB 25 in accounting for its stock optlon
incentive plans. , g
The following table illustrates the effect on the net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share 1f the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee
compensation:

fe
1

» Hi

. ‘ 2006 2005 2004 e
Net income (loss), as reported . 51,163,452 $ 169,590 $ (658,248) - o
Deduct: total stock-based employee .
compensation expense determined under fair
value based method for all awards, net of
related tax effecis {16,000) (16,000) (16,000
Pro forma net income (loss) $1,147,452 $ 153,590 $ (674,248)
Earnings (loss) per common share: : )
Basic — as reported $0.64 $0.10 $(0.37
Basic — pro forma $0.63 $0.09 $(0.38)
Diluted — as reported $0.63 $0.10 $(0.37)
Diluted — pro forma ' $0.62 $0.09 $(0.38)
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In December, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (revised
2004) (“SFAS No. 123R”), “Share Based Payments.” SFAS No. 123R requu'es that the compensation cost
relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements with the cost measured
based on the estimated fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. SFAS No. 123R allows for either -
prospectwe recognition of compensation expense or retrospective recognition. The effective date of SFAS No..
123R is the first quarter of the first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2005. For the Company, this
would require compllance for the quarter beginning July 1, 2006. The Company will prospectively adopt SFAS
No. 123R effective July 1| 2006. Based on stock optrons outstandmg at June 30, 2006, the Company estimates
SFAS No. 123R will requrre the Company to record approxrmately $14, 000 in additional compensation expense
for the twelve months endmg June 30, 2007. -

Inventor:es

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Raw materials cost is detcrmmed ona ﬁrst-m first-
out basis. Work in process and finished goods are determined on an average cost basis which is not materially
different from a first-in, first-out basis.

The Company periodically evaluates inventory to determine the likely future usage of those items in -
inventory. As a result, the Company will typically record a charge against inventory that has historical limited
usage. The Company als'o makes judgments as to future demand requrrehtents based upon customer orders in.
backlog or the propensuty of a customer to order a component from the Company. If such future demand
requlrements are unhkely, the Company will record a charge against inventory. During the fourth quarter of
'fiscal 2006, the Company recorded a charge against inventory of approx1mately $215,000. The charge amount
of approximately $215, 000 recorded for fiscal 2006 included a reduction in value for raw material purchases
between fiscal 2000 through fiscal 2005 totaling approximately $71, 000! The recorded inventory charge for
_fiscal 2006 for items not .prev1ously reduced was approximately $144,000.

Income Taxes

The Company comphes with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes," which requires an asset and
liability approach to financial reporting of income taxes. Deferred i mcome tax assets and liabilities are computed
for differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or
deductible ‘amounts in the future, based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the
differences‘are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce
- the deferred income tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

Essentlally all eammgs of the Company’s forelgn subsidiary, Kreisler Polska are expected to be
reinivested'in overseas expansion: Since no foreign earnings currently exrst an incremental U.S. or forelgn tax
on* repatrtatron of such earnings cannot be estimated. 5 : SRRl

15 . . ! .

Earmngs per Share :
The Company complies with SFAS No 128, "Earnings Per Share.” SFAS No. 128 requires dual B

presentation of basic and diluted income per common share for all penods presented. Basic income per common

. share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted
_ average number of com:hon shares outstanding for the period.  Diluted i income per common share reflects the -
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue comron stock were exercised or '+’ ¢
converted'into common stock or resulted-in the issuance of common stock that then'share i m the income of the -

, Company. The' dlfference between the number of shares used to compute basic income per'common share and-
diluted income per common share relates to additional shares to be issued upon the assumed exercise of stock ™ - "I

' opnons and warrants, net of shares hypothencally repurchased at the average market price with the proceeds of - -
exercise. . -

P

o ¥

Comprehensive Income
The Company complles with SFAS No. 130, "Reportmg Comprehenswe Income." SFAS No 130
establishes rules for the reporting and drsplay of comprehensive i mcome {loss) and its components. SFAS No.
130 requires the Company s'change in the foreign currency translation adjustments from its Polish subsidiary to
be included in other comprehensive income (loss). )
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

- The fair value of the Company's assets and liabilities, which qualify as financial instruments . under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial
Instruments,” approximate the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated balance sheets.

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. ‘Actual results could
differ from those estimates. '

Reclassifications

Beginning with the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the three months ended September 30, 2005 and Form
10-KSB/A (Amendment No. 1) for the year ended June 30, 2005 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”), the Company reclassified certain employee payroll and benefit expenses from cost of
goods sold to selling, general and administrative expenses. This reclassification incorporated fiscal 2005
changes in management positional responsibilities as well as the transition of the duties and responsibilities of
the former St. Petersburg, Florida corporate office to the Company’s facility in Elmwood Park, New Jersey.
The application of this reclassification to fiscal 2005 results in an increase of $506,046 in selling, general and
administrative expenses and a corresponding equal decrease in cost of goods sold. This reclassification has no
affect on the total costs and expenses or the net income of the Company for fiscal 2005.

Fiscal 2005 Reclassifications - Reclassification
Figcal 2005 Amount from Fiscal 2005
COGS to SG&A {Reclassified)

Sales $14,447,801 5 - $14,447 801

Cost of goods sold (“COGS™ 13,848,357 {506,046) 13,342,311 '
* _Selling, general and administrative ¢xpenses (“SG&A™) 356,395 506,046 -+ 862:441

Total costs and expenses 14,204,752 - 14,204,752 .
Income from operations $ - 243,049 - § 243,049

‘ e ae by
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

. . . ' . e .

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an Amendment of ARB;No. 43;.
Chapter 4.” The standard requires that abnormal amounts of idle capacity and spoilage costs should be excluded
from the cost of inventory and expensed when incurred. SFAS No. 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2005. The Company’s adoption of this standard has not had a material effect on its financial
position or result of operations. il

Do - Wi

.. In June 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting.Changes and Error Corrections.”;tSFAS .y

No. 154 replaces Accounting Principles'Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 3,
Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements. Among other changes, SFAS No..154 requires:-
that a voluntary change,in accounting principle be applied retroactively with all prior period financial statements
presented on the basis of the new accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to do so. SFAS No. 154 also
provides that (1) a change in method of depreciating or amortizing a long-lived non-financial asset must be
accounted for as a change in estimate (prospectively) that was affected by a change in accounting principle, and
(2) correction of errors in previously issued financial statements should be termed a “restatement”. The new
standard is effective for accounting changes and correction of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. Early adoption of this standard is permitted for accounting changes and correction of errors
made in fiscal years beginning after June 1, 2005. :

. In July 2006, the FASB published FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48 (“FIN 48™), "Accounting for -
Uncertainty in Income Taxes", to address the noncomparability in reporting tax assets and liabilities resulting -

23



from a lack of specific guidance in FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109
(“SFAS 109™), "Accounting for Income Taxes", on the uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's

financial statements. FIN
permitted. The Company
operations or cash flows.

48 will apply to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, with earlier adoption
does not expect this new FIN to have any 1mpact upon its ﬁnanc1al position, results of

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset

Retirement Obligations”,

[an interpretation of SFAS No. 143 (“FIN 47"),;which clarifies the term “conditional

asset retirement obhgatlon” as used in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” FIN 47
provides that an asset retirement obligation is conditional when either the timing and/or method of settling the
obligation is conditioned|on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is requlred to recognize a liability for the fair
'value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the llablllty can be reasonably estimated.
‘Uncertainty about the tlmmg and/or method of settlement of a condltlonal asset retirement obligation should be
considered in the measurement of the liability when sufﬁc:ent information exists. This interpretation also
-clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably’ ]estlmate the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation. FIN 47 is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2005. . The Company does
not believe that FIN 47 will have a material effect on its financial posmcn results of operations and cash flows. -

In December 2004 the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchange of Non-monetary Assets,” which
amends a portion of the guldance in APB No. 29, “Accounting for Non-monetary Transactions.” Both SFAS

No. 153 and APB No. 29

require that exchanges of non-monetary assets|should be measured based on fair value

of the assets exchanged. | APB No. 29 allowed for non-monetary exchanges of similar productive assets.
SFAS No. 153 ellmmates that exception and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of non-monetary
. assets that do not have commercnal substance. A non-monetary exchange has commercial substance if the future
-cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. SFAS
No. 153 is effective for non-monetary asset exchanges occurring in ﬁscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005.
" Any non-monetary asset*exchanges will be accounted for under SFAS No 153. The Company does not expect
‘ SFAS No. 153 to have amaterial effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

B, Cancentratwn of Credit Risk

TPF Company mamtams cash balances at several financial institutions. Accounts at cach domestic
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $100,000. Uninsured balances
approxunated $1,801 OOP and $2,325,000 at June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely The Company has not
expenenced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash

C. Invemones .

Inventones COﬂSlSt of the followmg at June 30, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Raw matenals $1,968,963 $1,606,347
Work in process - 1,122,269 855,100
Finished' goods b1 162,188 356,447

R

$3,253,420 . $2,817,894
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D Properg;, Plant, and Eqmpment net '

Property, plant, and equipment, net consist of the following at June 30, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Building improvements $ 280,787 $ 266,951
Machinery and equipment 6,440,711 5,883,375
’ ‘ _ T 6,721,498 6,150,326
Less accumulated depreciation (5,130,619)  (4,659,160)

$1,590,879 $1,491,166

At June 30, 2006 machinery and equipment included $570,545 of equipment acquired under capital
leases with accumulated depreciation of $127, 140. At June 30, 2005 machinery and equipment included
_ $448 070 of equipment acqmred under capltal leases with accumulated depreciation of $38,978.

Depreciation expense was $47l 459, $382,454 and $315,585 for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

‘E. Income Taxes

. The components of income tax expense/(benefit) as reflected in the Consolidated Statements of
. Operations for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows: : - :

2006 2005 2004
-Current tax expcnse/(beneﬁt) R
Federal $463,870 $18,600-  $(472,500)
‘State . _ 149,686 . 13,100 S
‘Foreign ‘ ' - - - Lot
_Total current tax expense/(benefit) - 613,556 31,700 (472,500)
Deferred tax expensc/(beneﬁt) § .
'Federal - - . 179.871 121,600 - 93, 000
State ’ ' (14,017 . 13,500 (19 100)
Foreign (24,410) {19,200) ‘ -, "‘f”_‘
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) ° 141,444 115,900 ' 73,900 e
Income tax expense/(benefit) ~ $755,000 $147,600 $(398, 600)' o

The components of earnings from operatnons before income taxes con51sted of the followmg for the
years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004: .

2006 . 2005 2604
U.s. $2,046930 S 415766  $(1,056,848) |
International (128,478) . © | (98,576) - - sl
Total . $1,918452 - $ 317190 - $(1,056,848) .-
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The tax-effected components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following at

June 30, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
~Accrued environmental eosts $163,031 $177,347
. Federal, foreign, and state net operating loss carryforwards 175,884 310,847

Other items, net : 58,300 76,100
Gross deferred tax assets 397,215 564,294
Valuation allowance | (21,742) ' (102,342)
Deferred tax assets | 375,473 461,952
Basis difference in fixed assets 55,817 29,051
Other items, net 38,013 5,101
. Deferred tax liabilities | 93,830 34,152
Net deferred tax assets | $281,643 $427,800
2006 2005
Net deferred tax assets consist of: o
Current deferred tax as:set $42,654  $166,000
Non-current deferred tax asset 238,989 261,800
Net deferred tax asset | $281,643  $427,800 .

' As of June 30, 2006 the Company had approximately $2,290, 000 of state and $222,000 of forelgn net
operating loss can'yforwards The state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2012 and
2010, respectively. There are no federal net operating loss can'yforwards The valuation allowance has been .
established to reduce the \deferred tax asset to an amount that is more lrkely than not to be realized, and is based
upon the uncertainty of realization of certain state deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards.

i ! J

The following is|a reconciliation of income taxes at the Federal statutory rate to the provision for -

mcome taxes

2004

2006 2005
Federal tax computed at statutory rate | $652,274  $107,800  $(359,300)
State taxes, net of Fedetl'al benefit 84,775 22,:100 (37,000)
- Foreign income taxed at rates other than Federal 19,272 151200 -
© Other items, net | (1,321) 2,500 (2,300)
Income tax expense/(benefit) $755,000 - $147,600  $(398,600)

F. Line of Credit

On January 28, 2006, Kretsler Polska entered into line of credit agreement with Bank Handlowy w Warszawre
(“Bank Handlowy™) in conjunctron with the APFA with the PEDA. The repayment of the loan amount of
1297,800 Polish zloty (approxlmately $93,000 at the June 30, 2006 exchange rate) was guaranteed by an mterest
bearing deposit made by|Kreisler Polska with Bank Handlowy totaling $l 11,000. The terms of the loan as of

June 30, 2006 are descrtbed below:

Initial loan amount $93,000
Loan term 12 months
Interest rate WIBOR* + 13.50%

* Warsaw Interbank Offered Rate. Loan interest rate at June 30, 2006 was 7. 62%
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The principal and interest rate on the outstanding loan balance at of June 30, 2006 was approximately $55,000
‘and 7.62%, respectively. The outstanding loan balance was paid in full durmg August 2006 and any restriction
on the balance of the interest beanng deposit was removed.

G. Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Stock Option Plan (the “Plan) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.in
November 1997. A maximum of 280,000 shares of the Company’s common stock may be issued under the Plan,
The term for all stock options granted is.tén years and optionees vest in the options over a three-year period. In

-the event of a change of control, as defined in'the Plan, optionees become fully vested in their unexercised -
options.

The purpose of the Plan 1§ to provide addmonal incentives to officers, other key employees directors of,
and important consultants to the Company by encouragmg them to invest in shares of the Company’s common
stock and, thereby; acquire a proprietary interest in the Company and an mcreased personal interest in the
Company’s continued success and progress.

Options under the Plan may qualify under Section 422 of the lntemal Revenue Code (Incentive Stock .
Options) or options which do not qualify under Section 422 (Nonqualified Options).

The following table summarizes option activity for the years encled June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

2006 2005 : _-2004.

Weighted - Weighted | - Weighted
Average Average . Average.
-. . Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares - Price '~ | Shares ‘Price | Shares Price’
Stock Option’ Actmty o o : . ) L
Outstandmg, begmmng of year 41,501 - - $2.97 105,501 $1.93°| 105,501 F $2.00 |
". Granted ' o ' B 16,000 ' $5.00 |
_Exercised {(4,000) $1.25 (64,000) $1.25 - -
" Expired or'surrendered T ‘ o . - - z ) (16,000) oo $5.50
_Qutstanding, end of year 37,501 $3.15 41,501 $2.97 105,501 00381930
Exercisable, end of year . 32,168 $2.85 30,834 $2.27 89,501 $l 38

At June 30, 2006, the weighted average contractual life of the 37,501 options outstandmg is four years,

and the welghted average contractual llfe of the 32 168 options exercisable is 3 years "
» S T N N B

The estimated fair value of stock optlons at the time of the grant:using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model was as follows:, + ' . C e s

) 7 2004

e
Had

Fair value per option $ 263 A .
'Assumptions: o

. Annualized dividend yield ., W 0% v
Expected volatlllty Lo . 58.06% o , . oo ek
Risk free mterest rate 3.22% S (-
Expected optlon terms (years) . . _‘ 5 '

Income tax benefits related to the exercise of stock options increased additional paid-in capital by $100,424 in
fiscal 2005,
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H. Significant Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Company’s largest customer (a commercial customer) were 59.6%, 58.9% and 51.0% of
total‘sales for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectwely Sales to the United States
Govemment were 5.7%, 10.4% and 13.5% of total sales for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004,

respectively.
Customer Sales Fiscal

r 2006 2005. 2004
Commercial customer $11,604,000 $8,514,000(a) $6,357,000(a)
U.S. Government $1,132,000 $1,497,000 $1,631,000

(a) For the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, sales to the Company’s 1argest three customers were
$10,731,000 and $7,896, 000, respectwely, which were inclusive of the sales to the commercial customer above.

Accounts receivable from the Company’s largest customer and the United States Govemment at June
30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, are as follows:

Accounts Receivable June 30,

| 2006 2005, 2004
Commercial customer $2,567,000 $1,932,000(b) $1,134,000 (b)
U.S. Government $99,000 $462,000 $398,’000

(b) As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, accounts receivable to the Company’ s three largest customers were
$2,430,000 and $1,551 OIOO respectlvely, which were inclusive of the accounts receivable due from the
commercial customer above.

The Company purchased more than 10% of the components used in the products manufactured by the
Company from a single suppher during each of the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Alternative
suppliers of these components are available to the Company and the loss of this supplier would not have a long-
'term material impact on the Company’s operations.

1. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company’s corporate office is located at the Kreisler Industrial Corporation manufacturing facility
in Elmwood Park, New Jersey The Company s New Jersey location consists of a 52,000 square foot leased .
- facility. 'The existing lease agreement expires on September 30, 2006. Effectlve July 11, 2006, Kreisler
' Manufacturing Corporatlon and Kreisler Industrial Corporation entered i in the Extension to Lease Agreement-
(the “Lease Agreement Extensmn”) with the facility owner. The Lease Agreement Extension extends the lease
term from October 1, 2006 through September 30, 2012. The Company s Kreisler Polska subsidiary operates
. from a 10,000 square foot leased facility located in Krakow, Poland. Krelsler Polska’s lease agreement has no
lease end date but does requ1re six months notice of cancellation by elther party prior to vacating the facility.,
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Future minimum lease commitments for each of the next five years and in the aggregate as of June 30,
2006 are as follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
Year ending June 30,
2007 $137,006 $303,594
- 2008 137,006 320,105
2009 137,006 324,075
2010 108,494 326,226
2011 22,429 342,169
Thereafier - 422,500
: 541,941 $2,038,669
Less amount representing interest {80,105)
Present value of net minimum
capital lease payments 461,836
Less current maturities (103,643)
Long term capital lease obligation $358,193

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 amounted to $289,787, $243,437,
and $245,862, respectively.

Contingencies

Certain federal and state laws authorize the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) to
issue orders and bring enforcement actions to compel responsible parties to take investigative and remedial
actions at any site that is determined to present an imminent and substantial danger to the public or the.
environment because of an actual or threatened release of one or more hazardous substances. These statutory
provisions impose joint and several responsibility without regard to fault on all responsible parties, including the
generators of the hazardous substances, for certain investigative and remedial costs at sites where substances
that are classified as hazardous are or were produced or handled. The Company generally provides for the
disposal or processing of such substances through licensed, independent contractors.

*-In July:1999, the Company became aware of historical releases of hazardous substances at its leased
manufacturing facility located in Elmwood Park, New Jersey. The Company promptly notified the New Jersey -
Department of Environmental Protection (“NJDEP”) as required by the New Jersey Spill Compensation and
Control ‘Act (“Spill Act?’); N.J.S.A. 58:10-23.11, and retained the services of environmental remediation
consultants to perform a full site characterization in accordance with the NJDEP’s Technical Requirements for
Site Remediation, N.J.A.C. 7:26E-1.1. The site characterization has been completed. In June 2001, the
Companyientered into a fixed price remediation agreement with Resource Control Corporation (“RCC”). The
remaining costestimated for remediation of the site under the fixed price remediation agreement with RCC is
approximately $408,000, most of which is expected to be paid in fiscal 2010. As of June 30, 2006, the
Company consulted with RCC and due to the delayed completion schedule for the remediation, the payment
requirements under the fixed price remediation will be made in fiscal 2010, rather than fiscal 2006 as originally
estimated in fiscal 2001. The change in the expected timing of the remaining payments under the fixed price -
remediation agreement resulted.in'a fiscal 2006 expense totaling $41,000. It is reasonably p0551ble that the
Company’s recorded estimate of remediation cost may change in the near term.
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At June 30, 2006, estimated remediation payments are as follows:

Year Ending June 30,
2007 5 -
2008 , - -
2009 ' » -
2010 467,630
2011 14,700
‘ 482,330 ‘
Unamortized discount {74,753)
I - $ 407,577

In a letter, dated February 23, 2006 the Company received a Notice of Assessment Related to Final
Audit Determination from the New Jersey.Division of Taxation that Krelsler Industrial’s Business Tax Returns
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001 are subject to additional income tax. The amount of
the final audit determmatlon totaled $89,591 of which $59,493.1s add1t10nal income tax expense, $5,503 is for
.penalties and $24,595 is. for interest through March 15, 2006. In accordance with the appropriate New Jersey
statutes, the Company protested the final audit determination within the 90 day allowable period (which
.commenced February 23 2006) and requested an informal admtmstratlve conference with the Conference and
Appeals Branch. The amount of interest potentiaily due is dependent on the final settlement date and is subject
to increase.

J. Segment Information

SFAS No. 131, {Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, supersedes
. SFAS No. 14, “F1nanc1a1 Reporting for Segments of a Business Enterpnse in reporting 1nfonnat10n about a-
publlc business enterpnse s operating segments. Operating segments are components of an enterprise for which
separate financial 1nformat|on is available that is evaluated regularly by Management in deciding how to
allocate resources and assess ﬁnancral and operatlng perfonnance '
. s
SFAS No. 131 requires that a public business enterprise report a measure of segment profit or loss,
certain specific revenue Iand expense items, and segment assets. It requires reconciliations of total segment v
revenues, total segment proﬁt or loss, total segment assets, and other amounts disclosed for segments to
- corresponding amounts m the enterprise’s general-purpose financial statements It requires that.all:publict. .}
businesses report 1nformatron about the revenues derived from the enterpnse s products or services (or groups of'
similar products and serv1ces) about the countries in which the enterprise eams revenues and holds assets, and
about major customers regardless of whether that mformatlon is used 1n|lmakmg operating decisions.. Howeveri
this statement does not requlre an-enterprise to report information that is not prepared for internalyuse:ifif:: .. .
reporting it would be 1mpract1cable ey : R TR VU TR 31 YN M3 ¢=1) (¢ S
e O
The Company has clected to organize its businesses based pnnt:lpally upon geographlc areas. . The
Company evaluates perfonnance and allocates resources based on revenues operating income (loss) and net
- assets employed. The accountlng policies'of the reportable segments are the; same as, those described ini, s iy
“Summary of Slgmﬁcant Accounting-] Pohcnes There are no material 1nter-segment sales; Netsales are} iz
attributed to geographic 'areas based on the locatlon of the assets producmg the revenues:- - gia e ot
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Geographic information regarding the Company’s net sales and long-lived assets is as follows for the

years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005:

United States Poland Total -
2006 ‘
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 19,710,990 $12,264 $19,723,254
Income (loss) from operations $2,001,192 $(125,862) $1,875,330
. Interest income . $116,697 $1,061 $117,758 -
" Interest expense $72,198 $1,943 $74,141
Income (loss) before income tax
expense : $2,046,929 $(128,477) $1,918,452
Segment assets $12,419,563 $592,435 $13,01 i‘,998
Depreciation $410,605 $60,854 $471,459
Inception
March, 2005
United States Poland Total
2005 '
Sales to unaffiliated customers $14,445974 $ 1,827 $14,447,801
« Income (loss) from operations $341,687 $(98,638) $243,049
Interest income $74,079 $62 $74,141
Income (loss) before income _ L
tax expense $415,766~ . $(98,576) $317,1%90
Segment assets $11,300,374 $276,965 $11,577,339
Depreciation ! e $363,976 $18,478 '$382,454

IS ok .
K. Relatéd Paity Transactions
lo ESIAAVIE *pJU.rr'.“ ' ' ! PR ;
%115 On July-152005; the Company and Wallace N. Kelly, Chamnan of the Board-of the Company, entered
1nt0 a‘letter agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) setting forth'the terms of the Company s engagement of: 7
Mr. Kelly.to render technical advisory services to the Company in the areas of process engineering, product’
development, strategic plannmg, customer and marketing support, as directed by the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.
anl sgowi y owimge, o Ta
o3 The Company agreed to pay Mr. Kelly $1,000 for each full (elght hours or greater) day that he performs"
such servwes*durmg the:term of the Consultmg Agreement. ‘For days that Mr. Kelly performs the services
during less than eight hours, the fee w1ll be based on the fractlon of actual’ hours durmg whlch the services were
performedto eighthours, . ..~ " . , Ce .o P

) The Company will also reimburse Mr. Kelly for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred during
the term of the Consulting Agreement, including, but not limited to, Mr. Kelly’s commute to or from his home
residence, living expenses while on site in New Jersey and certain business travel and entertainment expenses.
The Consulting Agreement became effective on July 1, 2005 and continues until thirty days following a written
termination notice by either party to the Consulting Agreement.

For the year ended June 30, 2006 the Company paid Mr. Kelly $153,400 for technical advisory services
and re1mbursed Mr. Kelly $27,000 for his out-of-pocket expenses.
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L. Employee Benefit Plan

Beginning April

1, 2005 the Company established an employee savings plan that qualifies as a deferred

,salary arrangement under Sectlon 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. lAI employees, except those covered by
ia collective bargammg agreemem are eligible to part1c1pate in the plan after completing one year of scrvncc

' The employer may, in lts sole discretion, contribute and allocate to each el1g1b1e participant’s account a
{percentage of the pamclpant s elective deferrals. Matching contnbutlons if any, shall be determined as of the
‘end of the plan year. NoI matching contributions were made to the 401(1() plan during the years ended June 30,
‘2006 and 2005. The plan does not offer employees an option to invest m the shares of the Company.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation

‘We.have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation and
Subsidiaries (collectively. the “Company™) as of June 30, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2006. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

' ,We conducted our audit.in accordance wzth the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(Umted States). Those. standards -require that we plan, and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of materlal misstatement. The Company is not
requlred to have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its mternal control, over financial reportmg Our

audit included c0n31derat10n of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures : -

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

* . of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aundit

also includes examining; on a test, basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
ﬁnancml statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentatlon We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

. Inour opmlon the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of June 30, 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the -

. year ended June 30, 2006 in conformity with accountmg principles generally accepted in the Umted States of
~America.

| Retetinc K - Qmgany, P

. Roseland, New Jersey
August 11, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm:

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation

We have audited the accompanymg consolidated balance sheets of Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation (a
Delaware corporation) and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements
-of operations, changes 1rl stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended June 30, 2005. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of .
the Company’s managen'tent Our responsibility is to express an op1ruor1l on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.
!

We conducted our audrts in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audlt to obtain reasonable assurance about
. whether the consohdated financial statements are free of material m1sstatement An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supportmg the amounts and disclosures in the consolldated financial statements. An audit
“also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant est1mates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

|
_reasonable basis for our opinion,

'
i

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, revised as descnbed in the
reclassification paragraph of Note A, present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Kreisler

‘Manufacturing Corporatron and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the. three-year period ended June 30, 2005 in conformity with
accounting pnncrples ge'nerally accepted in the United States of America.

As drscussed in the reclassification paragraph of Note A to the consohdated ﬁnanc1al statements, as a result of
some management posmonal changes during 2005, certain employee payroll and benefit expenses incurred . ‘
during fiscal year 2005 have been reclassified from cost of goods sold to selling, general : and admmrstratrvé ..
“expenses. This resulted i in an increase in sellmg, general and admmlstratlve expenses of $506, 046 for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2005 and a corresponding decrease in cost of goods sold. In addition, the Company e
corrected the classification of repayments of obllgatlons under capital leases in the oonsolldated statement, of ‘
. cash flows from mvestlrlg activities to financing activities. The 1nformatron related to these reclassifications was
discovered subsequent to the issuance of the consohdated financial statements. The.consolidated statements of
operations and cash flows have been restated to, reﬂect these reclass1ﬁcatlons ALt A
s .? .‘:i'a:‘h IR PR
/s! Gregory, Sharer & Stuart, P.A. . S i‘. C e I E {.,l
; : o . . 9t 0 1 a4l
v o Fai ?',i',:xgn:.‘l
NERLANE TR THE T

St. Petersburg, Florida
September 22, 2005, except for the reelasmﬁcatxon paragraph of Note A
as to which the date is December 23 2005

B S : L SL T T PR 3 B
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ITEM 8. CHANGES IN'-AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

On March 20, 2006, the Company’s Audit Committee of the Board of Directors engaged Rothstein,
Kass & Company, P.C. to serve as the Company’s independent reglstered public accounting firm for the ﬁscal
year ended June 30, 2006, following the dismissal of Gregory, Sharer & Stuart, P.A., the Company’s prior =~
independent registered public accounting firm. In accordance with SEC regulations, the Company filed
Amendment No. | to Form 8-K with the SEC.

ITEM 8A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company periodically reviews the design and effectiveness of its disclosure controls and internal
controls, and their associated procedures, over financial reporting. The Company makes modifications to '
improve the design and effectiveness of its disclosure controls and intérnal control structure, and may take
corrective action, 1f its reviews identify a need for such modtﬁcanons or actions.

The Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO™) and Chief Financial
Officer (“CFO”), does not expect that its disclosure controls and procedures or its internal controlsand
procedures for financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute; assurance that the objectives of the’control
system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints,
and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the mherent limitations in all
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud; if any, within the Company have been' detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgmients in decision-making can be faulty; and that breakdowns can oceur because of simple error or mistake.

Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two
or more people or by managemet override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is'based in
part upon certain assumptlons about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any -
de51gn will succeed in achlevmg its stated goals under all potentlal future conditions; over time, controls may
becoime madequate because of ch!anges in‘conditions, or the'dégree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may detenorate Because of the inherent llmltatlons 1n a cost-effectwe control system mlsstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected ' : ‘

WHTED LA . .

1 1 An evaluation was carried out under the superv151on and with’ the partlmpatlon of the Company’s
management, including the CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness of the Company s disclosure controls and'
procedures. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that as of the end of the penod covered
by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance
that material information required to be disclosed in reports that are filed or submitted under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is accumulated, recorded, processed, summarized and communicated to the
Company’s management, including the CEO, and CFO to allow tlmely dec151ons regarding the requnred R
disclosure, and reported on a timely basis as prov1ded ifi the Secuntles and Exchangc Conhission rules and o
forms. There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control éver finaicial reporting that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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- PART III

"ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS;
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

i
' Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement relatmg to the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement relating to the 2006 Annual Meetmg of
Stockholders.

ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND

MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement relating to the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 12, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

' Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement relating to the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. '

ITEM 13. EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are ﬁled with this Report..
31 Certiﬁca}te of Incorporation, including amendments
32 Bylaws (!
10.1 1997 Stock Option Plan "+

102 Lease Agreement between Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation, Kreisler Industrial Corporationand T & .
T Investments dated October 1, 2000.® N

10.3 Remedlatlon Contract between Kreisler- Manufactunng Corporatlon and Resource Control Corporation N
dated June 15, 2001, @

104 Supplemental Compensation Agreement between Kreisler Manufactunng Corporation and Wallace Kelly;
dated July 11, 2001. @+ :

10.5 Letter dated July 23, 2003 acknowledgmg termmatmn of previous Supplemental Compensation |.;:
Agreement between Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation and Wallace Kelly (July 11, 2001) and. New o0
Supplemental Compensatmn Agreement © ‘ .

10.6  Union Agrecrnent between Kreister Industrial Corporation, a Division of Kreisler Manufacturing, . &
Corporation, and Local 377, RWSDU, affiliated with AFL—CIO dated December 5,2003. ¥ ;.1
10.7 Consultmg Agreement between K.relsler Manufacturing Corporatlon and Wallace N. Kelly T

10.8 Extensnon to Lease Agreement between Kreisler Manufactunng Corporation, Kreisler Industrial .
Corporatlou and T & T Investments dated July 11, 2006.© !

' 109 Declaratlon of a Blank Bill Issuer and Additional Project Fundmg Agreement between Kreisler Polska
. Sp.zo. 0 and the Polish Enterprise Development Agency.

| 10.10  Fiscal 2006 Bonus Plan. ® +

I Statement regarding computation of per share earnings.
21 Subsidiaries of the registrant.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
' ' 36




31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. ' ,

31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of
: 1934. .

321  Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350.

Y Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 1997 (SEC File Number 000-
04036)

@ Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2001

G Incorpora:ted by reference to the registrant’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2004
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Sectlon 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersngned thereunto duly authorized.

KREISLER MANUFACTURING CORPORATION

/s/{ Edward A. Stern

Edward A. Stern, Co-President & Chief Financial Officer

Date: September 28§, 2006T

It accordance with the Securmes Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

NAME

/s/ Michael D. Stemn
Michael D. Stern

/s/ Edward A. Stern
Edward A. Stern

/sf Wallace N. Kelly
Wallace N. Kelly

/s/ Michael L. Goldberg

Michael L. Goldberg

/s/ John W. Poling
John W. Poling

/s/ Ronald Nussle, Jr.
Ronald Nussle, Jr.

TITLE

Co-President & Chief Executive Officer,
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Co-President & Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Director, Chairman of the Board
Director

Director

Director
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- September 28, 2006

September 28, 2006

" September 28, 2006

September 28, 2006
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1€ TIEIY A : EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INbEPEN"]gEﬁjEREGI’S’TERED.PUBL;IC,'ACCOUNTING FIRM
1 :‘.A : :, i 4 G
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Audit ComrmtteeL o : 0 B .fJ”(’ Aideil
‘Kreisler Manufactunng Corporatron ‘ .

180 Van Ripér Avenue'” - A oot

Elmwood Park] NJ 07407 - o

We hereby consent to the use of our report dated September 22, 2005 except for the
reclassification paragraph in Note A as to which the date is December 23, 2005; on the
consolidated' balance Sheéts'of Krelslcr Manufacturmg Corporatron as of June 30,-2005: and-2004,
and on the related consohdated statements of operatlons changes in, stockhclders equ1ty and
ccmprehenswe 1nc0me ‘and’ ‘cash flows for- the" years then ended.i in 'the annval Form 10-KSB for
the year ended June 30, 2006" Such report is bemg included in the unaudited financial
information prepared by management in documents filed by KJ'C]S]BI’ Manufacturmg Corporation
as required by the Securities and Exchange Comm1ss1on '

s/ Gregory, Sharer & Stuart, P.A.

O [ S R e T S T
St.-Petersburg; Fllorida e ' N T S T SRRSO
September 26,2006 TOU e r o ropent R G, e T
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Michael D. Stern, certify that:
1. [ have reviewed this report on Form 10-KSB of Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statefnents were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and lSd-
15(e)) for the small business issuer and have:

a) * Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) {Intentionally omitted].

\ c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and -

. L procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

i
5
A

d) -~ Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial
reportlng that occurred during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small business
issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
11kcly to materially affect, the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have dlsclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit
committee of the small business issuer’s board of directors {or persons performmg the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business
1 issuer’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

fs/ Michael D. Stern
Michael D. Stern, Chief Executive Officer Date: September 28, 2006
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER -

I, Edward A. Stern, certify that;
1. 1 have reviewed this report on Form 10-KSB of Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation;

2, Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a matenal fact necessary to-make the statements made, in'light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the small business issuer as of, and for, the penods presented in this report

4. The small busmess issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining dlsciosure controls and procedures (as deﬁned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) for the small business issuer and have: )

a) :Designed such disctosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedur‘es to be designed under our supervision, to enisure that material information relating to the
small busmess issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others

within those entltles particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) [Intentionally omitted].

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

- controls and procedures, as of the ¢nd of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluatic'm; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over
ﬁnancnal reporting that occurred during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

" small busmess issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer’s intemal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The small busmess issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed; based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit
committee of the small business issuer’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business
issuer’s ablllty to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves ma.nagemcnt or other employees who

have a significant role in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.
£nt 4 ! P g

/s/ Edward A. Stem 7
Edward A. Stern! Chief Financial Officer Date: September 28, 2006




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code), each of the undersigned officers of Kreisler Manufacturing
Corporation (the “Company”) does hereby certify with respect to the Annual Report of the
Company on Form 10-KSB for the period ended June 30, 2006 (the “Report”) that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects,
the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: September 28, 2006 {s/ Michael D. Stern
Michael D. Stern
Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 28, 20(:)6 /s/ Edward A. Stern
: Edward A. Stern” '
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code)
and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WALLACE N. KELLY
Chairman of the Board,
Independent Engineering Consultant

MICHAEL L. GOLDBERG, ESQ.
Independent Financial Advisor

RON NUSSLE, JR.
President, ICR Enterprises, LLC

JOHN W. POLING
Executive Vice President,
The TUBE Media Corporation

MICHAEL D. STERN
Co-President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company

OFFICERS

MICHAEL D. STERN
Co-President, Chief Executive Officer

EDWARD A. STERN
Co-President,
Chief Financial Officer,

Treasurer and Secretary

CORPORATE OFFICE

- XKREISLER MANUFACTURING CORPORATION

180 Van Riper Avenue
Elmwood Park, New Jersey 07407

SUBSIDIARIES

KREISLER INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION
Elmwood Park, New Jersey

KREISLER POLSKA SF. Z Q0.0
Krakow, Poland

AUDITORS

ROTHSTEIN, KASS & COMPANY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

4 Becker Farm Road

Roseland, New Jersey 07068

TRANSFER AGENT
AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER AND TRUST COMPANY

40 Wall Street
New York, New York 10005

COUNSEL

BLANK ROME, LLP
One Logan Square

- Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-6998

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Stockholders may obtain, free of charge, a copy of Kreisler’s
annual report on Form 10-K$B filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the year ended June 30, 2006, by
written or telephone request to: '

Corporate Secretary

Kreisler Manufacturing Corporation
180 Van Riper Avenue

Elmwood Park, New Jersey 07407
Telephone: 201-791-0700

Facsimile: 201-791-8015
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